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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Good morning.

          3  Welcome to the State and Federal Legislation

          4  Committee hearing.

          5                 Today we will consider a variety of

          6  Home Rule Messages. SLRs 36, 37, 39 and 53, involved

          7  the reconveyance for property for which taxes were

          8  not paid, where the circumstances were such that the

          9  former owner may be entitled to recoup the property

         10  after paying all taxes and penalties.

         11                 Does the Mayor have any objection to

         12  these SLRs? Do you have an objections to the

         13  in-rems? No, okay.

         14                 The other SLRs we will consider are

         15  as follows: SLR 24, which would give Assistant

         16  Deputy Wardens who have served as Deputy Wardens for

         17  at least a year the rank of Deputy Warden.

         18                 SLR 48, which would allow municipal

         19  directors of weights and measures in cities with a

         20  population of 1 million or more to confiscate or

         21  make inoperable weighing and measuring devices for

         22  which the inspection fees remain unpaid.

         23                 SLR 58 would allow Sanitation workers

         24  who were laid off for economic reasons in the early

         25  1990s to purchase credit toward their pensions for
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          2  the period during which they were suspended.

          3                 SLR 59 would allow New York City

          4  sanitation employees who failed to elect

          5  participation in the 20-year Retirement Benefit

          6  Program during the original window period can now

          7  enroll in that program.

          8                 SLR 72 is intended to give police

          9  superior officer retirees hired after July 1st,

         10  1988, the same benefits from the police superior

         11  officers' supplement fund, as those hired before

         12  July 1st, 1988.

         13                 And SLR 90 would establish a 25-year

         14  age 50 retirement program, for certain classes of

         15  automotive workers and mechanics.

         16                 Finally, there is one preconsidered

         17  SLR, which would establish a 25-year retirement

         18  program for the New York City Deputy Sheriffs.

         19                 We're going to hear from the

         20  Administration first and the Administration can

         21  testify in whatever order they want on those SLRs,

         22  we're going to hold the hearings open for all, so...

         23                 Please, identify yourselves for the

         24  record, and let us know how you feel.

         25                 COMMISSIONER FRASIER: Good morning,
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          2  Chairman Miller and distinguished Council Members.

          3  My name is William J. Frasier, I'm the Commissioner

          4  for the New York City Department of Correction. I'm

          5  here today to make a statement in opposition of

          6  State legislation, Resolution S.1439.

          7                 The Department of Correction opposes,

          8  strongly opposes this proposed legislation, which

          9  would provide for the automatic permanent

         10  appointment of Deputy Wardens one year after such

         11  assignment. As likely to adversely affect the safety

         12  of both staff and inmates, as an unwarranted and

         13  detrimental interference with the traditional

         14  authority and responsibility of the Commissioner of

         15  Correction.

         16                 Before I continue, one point I would

         17  like to make is, last year, and I believe this year,

         18  a point was made where the Deputy Warden ADW

         19  situation was try to be correlative to the detective

         20  in the NYPD. There is no correlation. A detective in

         21  NYPD is a police officer with a special assignment.

         22  This is more in correlation to a police captain and

         23  a Deputy Inspector or Inspector. In that situation,

         24  while they're attached to the Captain's bargaining

         25  certificate, they work at the will of the
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          2  Commissioner, and rightfully so, because the

          3  Commissioner is responsible to make sure that crime

          4  stays reduced.

          5                 We would be in the same position in

          6  ensuring that violence in our prison, and the safety

          7  of our staff, and prisoners alike, would also remain

          8  reduced as we have today.

          9                 The Commissioner of Correction,

         10  pursuant to the New York City Charter and

         11  Administrative Code, has the sole power and

         12  authority concerning the care, custody and control

         13  of persons incarcerated in the Department

         14  facilities.

         15                 The Commissioner is also responsible

         16  for the charge and management of all institutions of

         17  the City placed under his jurisdiction by law,

         18  sixteen jails, court pens in five boroughs and three

         19  hospital prison wards.

         20                 In order to carry out his

         21  responsibilities and ensure the efficient operations

         22  of the agency, the Commissioner must have authority

         23  to ensure that only those employees most capable of

         24  carrying out the mission of the agency with maximum

         25  proficiency and professionalism, remain in executive
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          2  and management positions.

          3                 In the early 1980s, in the case of

          4  Lenihan versus the City of New York, the State's

          5  highest court approved the system which allows the

          6  Commissioner to place those Assistant Deputy

          7  Wardens, Warden level 1, in higher assignment

          8  levels. The courts have acknowledged that it is

          9  imperative an agency head retain maximum discretion

         10  to assign individuals to and remove them from

         11  various management and executive administrative

         12  positions.

         13                 This is particularly important, given

         14  a critical and security sensitive agency that he

         15  must manage. At the same time, the Department of

         16  Correction recognizes the importance of civil

         17  service tenure and rights. Deputy Wardens already

         18  enjoy such tenure and rights at the entry level of

         19  Assistant Deputy Warden --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Commissioner, can

         21  I just interrupt you for one second?

         22                 Do we have a copy of your testimony?

         23                 COMMISSIONER FRASIER: I believe so.

         24  If not, I will get you one.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: I apologize for
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          2  interrupting your flow. Thank you very much. All

          3  right, go ahead.

          4                 Please, go right ahead. I apologize

          5  for interrupting.

          6                 COMMISSIONER FRASIER: At the same

          7  time, the Department of Correction recognizes the

          8  importance of civil service tenure and rights.

          9  Deputy Wardens already enjoy such tenure and rights

         10  at the entry level assignment of Assistant Deputy

         11  Warden, Warden Level 1.

         12                 Since the Lenihan case in 1982, the

         13  civil service title of Warden has been broadbanded

         14  to include four assignment levels: Warden Level 1,

         15  Assistant Deputy Warden; Warden Level 2, Deputy

         16  Warden; Warden Level 3, Warden; and Warden Level 4,

         17  Bureau Chiefs and Assistant Chiefs.

         18                 A competitive examination continues

         19  to be required in order for a uniformed employee to

         20  be promoted to the civil service title of Warden 1.

         21                 Once an employee has been so promoted

         22  to Warden Level 1, Assistant Deputy Warden, he may

         23  then be reassigned to various levels within the

         24  title, both upwards and downwards at the discretion

         25  of the Commissioner or his designee.
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          2                 The principle of allowing

          3  reassignment from one level to another within the

          4  same title and without a competitive examination is

          5  based upon a "judgment that not all the capabilities

          6  required to perform the duties and undertake

          7  responsibilities inherent in the higher

          8  categories...are capable of determination by

          9  objective testing." And that's in Engel versus the

         10  City of New York.

         11                 The courts have looked at the issue

         12  of assignment levels within a title extensively and

         13  upheld it as valid.

         14                 In upholding broadbanding, the courts

         15  have repeatedly noted that the difference in

         16  assignment levels is not a difference in the basic

         17  knowledge and skills one possesses for the job, but

         18  an assumption of more Responsibility and

         19  Accountability accompanied by a greater

         20  compensation.

         21                 The courts have further recognized

         22  that "The ability of government employers to

         23  institute innovative changes to improve the delivery

         24  of services to their citizens/taxpayers should not

         25  be unnecessarily straight jacketed..." And that's in
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          2  Richman versus Koch.

          3                 The Court of Appeals in Green versus

          4  Lang agreed with the proposition that "it is vital

          5  that the public officials responsible for the City's

          6  complex day-to-day operations continue to have the

          7  flexibility to utilize this important public

          8  resource in the manner they deem essential for

          9  carrying out the key functions entrusted to them."

         10                 All persons assigned to any of the

         11  warden levels enjoy tenure and civil service rights

         12  in the entry-level assignment of assistant deputy

         13  warden. No person who has been promoted to Assistant

         14  Deputy Warden may be removed from that position and

         15  demoted to the rank of captain without first being

         16  afforded due process consistent with Civil Service

         17  Law section 75. On the other hand, it has been

         18  fairly well established in the courts that agency

         19  heads have the right to reassign employees to the

         20  various levels within a given civil service title,

         21  including that of warden, and deputy warden, at

         22  their discretion.

         23                 This proposed amendment to the City

         24  Administrative Code would create what amounts to a

         25  new competitive civil service title without any
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          2  selection protocol or examination having been

          3  created and adopted by the Department of Citywide

          4  Administrative Services. It would also, in effect,

          5  nullify the hard-won court decision in Lenihan.

          6                 Most importantly, this legislation

          7  will be detrimental to the efficient operations of

          8  our jails. If it is determined that an individual

          9  assigned to Warden Level 2 is unable or unwilling to

         10  perform the duties of Deputy Warden responsible

         11  professionally or competently, the Department could

         12  not allow such an individual to continue to perform

         13  those duties.

         14                 As then State Supreme Court Judge

         15  Harold Baer noted in Engel, this sort of plan "is a

         16  method to avoid the stagnation of the Peter

         17  Principle which holds that in large organizations

         18  employees tend to be promoted until they reach a

         19  position that they are unable to effectively

         20  perform."

         21                 It is imperative for you to

         22  understand that no one is being fired. Should they

         23  not meet the standards of an executive position,

         24  they are merely restored to their civil service

         25  title, a position they may be more suited for. Yet,
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          2  if this legislation were adopted, the Department

          3  would be required to continue to compensate an

          4  ineffective employee as though he were performing

          5  the duties of a Deputy Warden.

          6                 Perhaps more troubling is the fact

          7  that the Department would not be authorized to

          8  immediately assign another individual that is

          9  qualified to that post as Warden Level 2.

         10                 The position of Deputy Warden is

         11  vital to the efficient management of our jails.

         12  Deputy Wardens are responsible for the

         13  administration, security, programs and operations of

         14  our jails, and in the absence of the Warden, they

         15  are responsible for the entire facility.

         16                 I would like to remind the Council

         17  that as recently as 1994, the City's jail system was

         18  generally portrayed as a system of unmanageable

         19  chaos. Historically, inmate stabbings and slashings

         20  averaged more than 100 a month, with some months

         21  topping 150.

         22                 The high rates of violence in turn

         23  led to unacceptably high levels of overtime and

         24  employee absenteeism, inmate injuries, low staff

         25  morale and unsanitary and dangerous conditions.
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          2                 Those conditions were summed up in a

          3  1994 front-page headline story in New York Magazine

          4  which proclaimed, Is Rikers About to Explode? In

          5  fact, it never did explode - the Department has

          6  undergone a total transformation. Inmate violence

          7  has been reduced by 90 percent since Fiscal Year

          8  1995. Overtime is down by 27 percent and absenteeism

          9  is down 28 percent over the same period. And because

         10  employees coming to work do not have to spend the

         11  bulk of their time and shifts responding to

         12  violence, staff can and has focused on improving the

         13  services to inmates.

         14                 These changes are the result of

         15  numerous initiatives implemented by this

         16  administration, most notably T.E.A.M.S. (Total

         17  Efficiency Accountability Management System), a

         18  highly respected management measurement tool that

         19  has been recognized by Harvard University's John F.

         20  Kennedy School of Government.

         21                 Many of our very best mangers and

         22  executives were discovered through this process,

         23  while other ineffective managers were exposed.

         24                 The effective implementation of those

         25  initiatives was, to a large extent, dependent on the
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          2  direction of the Department employees in management

          3  and executive positions.

          4                 Had the Commissioner been

          5  straight-jacketed in his ability to assign the

          6  employees he believed to be most qualified for

          7  management, administrative and executive positions

          8  to a level where they would be most effective, it is

          9  doubtful that this remarkable turnaround would have

         10  been accomplished in such a short period of time.

         11                 In fact, this legislation, more than

         12  any other, would spiral this agency backward more

         13  profoundly than any other thing I could imagine.

         14                 This resolution is simply union

         15  rhetoric to avoid accountability at an executive

         16  level at all costs.

         17                 It is their ploy to backdoor a piece

         18  of legislation that already has been lost in a court

         19  of law, and at the bargaining table.

         20                 It is a dangerous precedent for the

         21  Council to overrule the practice of collective

         22  bargaining and court decisions and be tricked into

         23  becoming the hired gun of unions and special

         24  interests.

         25                 For all of the foregoing reasons, the
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          2  Department of Correction strongly opposes the

          3  present City Council resolution that would urge the

          4  New York State Legislature to amend Section 9-117 of

          5  the Administrative Code of the City of New York.

          6                 I implore you to act responsibly to

          7  the citizens to whom we serve and oppose this

          8  resolution.

          9                 I will take any questions.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you.

         11                 If you could just explain for the

         12  Committee, what is the exact difference in job

         13  responsibilities between an Assistant Deputy Warden

         14  and a Deputy Warden.

         15                 COMMISSIONER FRASIER: An Assistant

         16  Deputy Warden is relatively a tour commander,

         17  something similar to, if you wanted to correlate it

         18  to something, it would be like a police lieutenant

         19  that would be in charge of a precinct at a given

         20  time.

         21                 He is in charge of the tour itself.

         22  He oversees that the Officers are doing their job,

         23  the captains are doing their job, during the actual

         24  tour of duty.

         25                 A Deputy Warden is much more of an
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          2  administrative and executive position. He oversees a

          3  particular area of security or programs or

          4  administration.

          5                 He works closely in the

          6  decision-process making with the Warden and the

          7  chiefs, in carrying out the mindset of the agency.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: And how many

          9  Deputy Wardens do you have who have been serving for

         10  longer than a year at the position of Deputy Warden?

         11                 COMMISSIONER FRASIER: I don't know

         12  the exact number. Probably about half, at this point

         13  about 25. We have a total of I think about 55 Deputy

         14  Wardens in total for the whole Department.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: And how often do

         16  you demote people from Deputy Warden to --

         17                 COMMISSIONER FRASIER: I would say in

         18  the 20 years of broadbanding being in effect, I

         19  would say no more than a handful of Deputy Wardens

         20  have actually been demoted that I can recall, maybe

         21  five to eight, that I can recall. And that's in 20

         22  years.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Okay.

         24                 COMMISSIONER FRASIER: We don't take

         25  this power that we have or discretion arbitrarily or
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          2  capriciously. The idea when we promote someone is

          3  for them to succeed, not to fail. So, we don't take

          4  this lightly, to put people back or restore them to

          5  their civil service title.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: But most of the

          7  time when you say if somebody was failing, it would

          8  become clear within a year that they were failing? I

          9  mean, when you are doing demotion, you bring

         10  somebody up, do you let them be there for years and

         11  then all of a sudden it becomes clear that they are

         12  failing?

         13                 COMMISSIONER FRASIER: Not

         14  necessarily. Something can happen that's drastic

         15  that would infringe upon the image of this agency,

         16  and effectively, or have an effect on his ability to

         17  be able to carry out his duties, in that executive

         18  title. So, it's not just seniority, it's not a

         19  matter of time and rank, it's a matter of you're a

         20  constant manager and executive in the agency, and

         21  decisions, like in any business, have to be made

         22  continuously, no matter how many years of service

         23  you are in. And if you're going to start making a

         24  bad decision, or make a critically bad decision,

         25  it's not something that we can let go on for any
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          2  length of time. A disciplinary process can take up

          3  to 18 months, and we could not be able to live with

          4  a manager for 18 months. The responsibility they

          5  have directly affects the well-being of staff in

          6  these facilities and the security of these

          7  facilities. People could get seriously injured with

          8  a bad manager in effect.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Okay, let me just

         10  apologize. Actually, I neglected to acknowledge that

         11  Council Member Provenzano and Council Member Oddo,

         12  both members of the Committee, Council Member

         13  Fisher, are here with us.

         14                 Council Members, do you have any

         15  questions?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Council Member

         18  Oddo.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you, Mr.

         20  Chairman.

         21                 Good morning, Commissioner.

         22                 COMMISSIONER FRASIER: Good morning.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Commissioner,

         24  the components of this bill point to a case, a 1998

         25  decision, the facts behind that case, it's the
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          2  Collette Campbell v. The Transit Authority, the

          3  Transit Authority apparently reassigned the civil

          4  service employee from a position of supervisor level

          5  2 to supervisor level 1, and the Court, the

          6  Appellate Division, the 2nd Department, deemed that

          7  as a penalty and that should have triggered a

          8  hearing. I don't know if Counsel or someone wants to

          9  come up, but where does that decision play in all of

         10  this?

         11                 COMMISSIONER FRASIER: I don't see

         12  where it plays at all. I will let Counsel, if she is

         13  aware of that particular case, but we are talking

         14  about a civil service uniformed organization, the

         15  severity of what goes on in our jails and in the

         16  streets that's why I said the correlation is much

         17  more closely to the situation of a Deputy Inspector,

         18  or Inspector, or Assistant Chief in Police who are

         19  seriously involved in the reduction of crime and

         20  maintaining the safety of the streets. The Deputy

         21  Warden is very seriously involved in making sure

         22  that the reduction of violence in our jails is

         23  carried out, and an ineffective manager in one of

         24  those positions has a drastic impact on the safety

         25  and well-being of people in the facilities.
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          2                 So, I don't really see the

          3  correlation between the Transit situation and that

          4  of a manager in the Department of Correction.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Well, I'm not

          6  making the link or comparing the supervisor level 2

          7  position with the Transit Authority to that of a

          8  Deputy Warden, I'm just asking in terms of from a

          9  legal point of view, is this a precedent that's been

         10  set would, if a Court in this particular case

         11  decided that moving an individual from one level to

         12  another level was deemed a penalty, which should

         13  have triggered a due process hearing, can we infer

         14  from that, that if you folks move an individual from

         15  one level to another, then, in fact, that would

         16  require a hearing.

         17                 COMMISSIONER FRASIER: Well, the cases

         18  that I've cited clearly indicate that. We have the

         19  discretion and the ability to move upward and

         20  downward within the title. Remember, this isn't

         21  separate titles, this is a different level of

         22  appointments within the civil service title.

         23                 Like I said, I don't know how the

         24  structure of the Transit Authority works, but in our

         25  case it's a title or a position within a civil
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          2  service title. So there is difference and there is

          3  case history and court law on it that has given us

          4  clearly that discretion.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Any other

          7  questions?

          8                 Okay, thank you very much.

          9                 Also testifying on this bill, we have

         10  Robert Ungar and Sidney Schwartzbaum.

         11                 COMMISSIONER FRASIER: Thank you very

         12  much.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you,

         14  Commissioner.

         15                 Go right ahead, gentlemen. Identify

         16  yourselves for the record and give us your brief

         17  testimony.

         18                 MR. UNGAR: Mr. Chair, members of the

         19  Committee, I'm Robert Ungar. I'm the Legislative

         20  Counsel to the Assistant Deputy Wardens, and Deputy

         21  Wardens Association, in the New York City Department

         22  of Correction.

         23                 I'm going to open this morning before

         24  President Schwartzbaum testifies just to try to

         25  clear up and put this Collette Campbell and some of
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          2  this civil service, legal framework around this to

          3  try to give you a mindset that we're approaching

          4  this from.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Briefly, Bob.

          6                 MR. UNGAR: Yes.

          7                 It was said earlier that the rank of

          8  Deputy Warden is similar to the relationship between

          9  Police Captain and Police Inspector. Not true.

         10                 Deputy Warden Level 1 and 2 are the

         11  result of a civil service examination, which then

         12  qualifies the appointed individual to be designated

         13  as a Level 1 or Level 2 Warden, but there's an exam

         14  for the job.

         15                 The job was also reclassified years

         16  ago as labor. It's not managerial.

         17                 There is no test for inspector rank

         18  at any level. The last civil service rank in the

         19  Police Department is Captain, after that it's an

         20  appointed rank, subject totally to the whim of the

         21  Commissioner, in terms of appointment, promotion and

         22  demotion back to civil service rank of Captain, that

         23  is not the case with the title of Deputy Warden,

         24  which one is appointed to from a civil service list.

         25                 Now, if you follow the logic through
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          2  a little bit. These people that come off this list

          3  and are appointed, what Collette Campbell says is

          4  that once you're designated as level 2, within that

          5  civil service rank, and it doesn't matter whether

          6  it's in Correction, Transit, Sanitation or anywhere

          7  else, that's not the differentiation here.

          8                 What case stands for is the principle

          9  that if one violates Department rule or regulation

         10  and is to be demoted, that even if you've been

         11  designated by the agency head as the level 2 within

         12  a rank, you are entitled to Section 75 coverage.

         13                 That is exactly the situation that

         14  faces the Deputy Warden rank in corrections as union

         15  members who are labor, not management.

         16                 As you know, often agency heads,

         17  City, State, federal, will do things which become

         18  the subject of litigation and from time to time

         19  legislative bodies codify court cases essentially to

         20  make, bring even more clarity to the situation.

         21                 Look, the fact is that in

         22  Corrections, if one accepts the appointment to a

         23  rank of one of the chiefs, that many were here this

         24  morning and have left, that's a rank where when you

         25  take the job you know it's not competitive, it's
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          2  managerial, you're going to be potentially tossed

          3  around by the political circumstance of the day or

          4  the whim of the Commissioner or some personality

          5  battle, but that should not be the case in the

          6  competitive ranks which are tested and made based

          7  upon merit selection and competitive examinations.

          8                 When you sign on and take the test to

          9  go into the ranks for Deputy Warden 1 and 2, and

         10  Assistant Deputy Warden, you do not sign on to be

         11  subject to the whims of the politics, the

         12  Departmental politics of the day. You are there as a

         13  front-line supervisor with a job, and, in fact, it's

         14  a really important job because of the public safety

         15  issues that are involved in this, and these people

         16  should not be subjected to whim, they should be

         17  permitted their full civil service rights, which I

         18  believe Collette Campbell in effect would give them,

         19  except that it's time to codify the situation so

         20  that it becomes clearer and we don't have to come

         21  back here year after year and ask for help.

         22                 I will turn it over to Mr.

         23  Schwartzbaum.  I will be here if you have any

         24  questions on this, my part of it.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you.
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          2                 MR. SCHWARTZBAUM: Chair of the

          3  Committee, Council Members, thank you for giving me

          4  the opportunity to testify in support of SLR 24, the

          5  due process bill for Deputy Wardens.

          6                 My name is Sidney Schwartzbaum, I'm

          7  president of the Assistant Deputy Warden's Union,

          8  the highest ranking uniformed union in the

          9  Department of Correction.

         10                 Last year this bill passed the City

         11  Council and the State Assembly, but lingered in the

         12  Senate when no action was taken by the Senate at the

         13  time.

         14                 This legislation is consistent with

         15  Section 75 of civil service law, as well as Mayor's

         16  Executive Order 16, which mandates both a formal and

         17  an informal disciplinary process for uniformed

         18  members of the Department.

         19                 During 1996, following a lengthy and

         20  costly litigation process, the rank of Deputy

         21  Warden, Warden Level 2, which it's also known as,

         22  was assimilated into Assistant Deputy Warden's

         23  Union.

         24                 Initially the City validated those

         25  due process rights defined within Section 75 of the
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          2  civil service law, as well as Mayor's Executive

          3  Order 16. They did that by filing charges and specs

          4  on many members of this union for a period of two

          5  years, and they did comply with that. Now they are

          6  changing that policy in midstream.

          7                 Unfortunately, the Department of

          8  Correction has now undertaken a policy simply

          9  demoting or requiring the retirement of selected

         10  Deputy Wardens absent any hearing process or

         11  attendant due process rights.

         12                 The 1996 litigation, decision number

         13  1195, was a hard-fought union victory which

         14  reclassified the title of Deputy Warden as union and

         15  no longer managerial.

         16                 The managerial designation was

         17  originally implemented in 1979 by personal

         18  resolution 7914 classifying the rank of Deputy

         19  Warden as managerial exempt from collective

         20  bargaining.

         21                 Subsequent to this action, Patrick

         22  Lenihan, a Deputy Warden, initiated litigation to

         23  reverse the reclassification, but unfortunately he

         24  failed to file his case within the proper time frame

         25  under Article 78 proceedings, unlike Peter Gorman,
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          2  who did it in the Fire Department recently.

          3                 The current due process legislation

          4  would also serve to enhance the career path of my

          5  members and afford them the right to a hearing for

          6  disciplinary action consistent with existing civil

          7  service laws, and Mayoral Executive Orders.

          8                 I must emphasize that we attempted to

          9  negotiate this matter via collective bargaining, at

         10  which time the City Office of Labor Relations

         11  instructed us to address this issue with management

         12  of the Department of Correction.

         13                 Initially during our discussion with

         14  the Department, we were led to believe that the

         15  agency considered this matter a non-issue, that our

         16  Deputy Wardens would be afforded due process

         17  safeguards, which in fact they did implement for two

         18  and a half years after they became unionized. So,

         19  this process was already in effect in 1996. Once

         20  they became unionized, was going on for two years

         21  after they were unionized and in midstream 1998 they

         22  stopped this.

         23                 Unfortunately, over a period of time

         24  the agency has reversed its initial position on this

         25  matter, and instead held that in their opinion
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          2  Deputy Wardens had no due process rights.

          3                 Despite repeated attempts on the part

          4  of our association to reach an accommodation in this

          5  matter, the agency has refused to change its

          6  position, let alone admit to or explain its initial

          7  acknowledgment that this was a non-issue and that

          8  Deputy Wardens would be for such due process rights.

          9                 Given the fact that the City Office

         10  of Labor Relations refused to negotiate this matter

         11  via collective bargaining, and the fact that our

         12  agency, although initially deemed this a non-issue,

         13  has since taken an immutable stance that Deputy

         14  Wardens have no due process rights.

         15                 Our association was left with no

         16  recourse other than to undertake an action for

         17  relief by means of this legislation.

         18                 Your consideration and assistance

         19  with this legislation is greatly appreciated and

         20  will greatly benefit the career path of my

         21  membership.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Okay.

         23                 MR. SCHWARTZBAUM: Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you for

         25  your testimony.
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          2                 Yes, Council Member Oddo has a

          3  question.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Mr. Ungar,

          5  subsequent to Campbell, has there been an

          6  opportunity for a Deputy Warden to bring an action

          7  along the same lines so that you would have a court

          8  make a decision specifically?

          9                 MR. UNGAR: Since Collette Campbell,

         10  we have had two Deputy Wardens demoted. After some

         11  discussion, and after about respectively 60 and 90

         12  days after that, they were put back to their

         13  positions. I had told the Department I would

         14  initiate litigation. I do not, and I repeat this, I

         15  do not want to minimize the Commissioner's ability

         16  to demote people, consistent with civil service law.

         17  All I want is a fair hearing, the right to question

         18  witnesses, the right to give our side to the story,

         19  and they repromoted those people.

         20                 Obviously they must have determined

         21  that there was insufficient credible evidence to

         22  substantiate it.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Okay, thank you.

         24                 Thank you, both.

         25                 I don't think there is anybody here
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          2  to testify on the reconveyances. Is there anybody

          3  here to testify on any of the reconveyances? SLR 36,

          4  37, 39 and 53? No.

          5                 SLR 48, which is the weights and

          6  measures bill. We're aware of -- okay, a brief

          7  statement.

          8                 Go ahead.

          9                 MR. EILER: Good morning, Chairman

         10  Miller. I am Andrew Eiler, I am the Chief Research

         11  Analyst for the Department of Consumer Affairs, and

         12  Commissioner Hoffman asked me to thank you for the

         13  opportunity to appear before you on this Home Rule

         14  Message for A2268 and 2632.

         15                 In summary, rather than -- you have

         16  the testimony --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: I appreciate

         18  that. We will review it.

         19                 MR. EILER: Okay. Basically this would

         20  give the Department, after hearing a notice to the

         21  business, an opportunity to either immobilize or to

         22  confiscate a scale, on which scale fees have not

         23  been paid.

         24                 Over the years about 15 percent of

         25  the scale fees that we bill end up not being paid
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          2  and our basic means of recovering this is by a

          3  lawsuit.

          4                 This mechanism will enable us,

          5  through this notice process, enable us to collect

          6  the fees much more effectively and efficiently to

          7  make sure that everyone who has an inspection of the

          8  scale that we're required to conduct will actually

          9  pay for the cost of that inspection.

         10                 And that's basically the intent of

         11  this. The bill passed last year in the Assembly, and

         12  we're working on getting this thing done so that we

         13  can have this effective means of collecting what's

         14  owed to the Department.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Okay.

         16                 MR. EILER: Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you very

         18  much.

         19                 Commissioner, do you want to come

         20  forward and testify on the other items on the

         21  schedule?

         22                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: My name is James

         23  Hanley, H-a-n-l-e-y. I'm the Commissioner of Labor

         24  Relations for the City of New York at 40 Rector

         25  Street.
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          2                 I'm here to testify on several bills,

          3  and I guess I'll do it very quickly.

          4                 The bill number SLR 58, suspension of

          5  employees of the Department of Sanitation, we are

          6  opposed to that bill.

          7                 Bill Number SLR 59, the 20-year

          8  retirement for City Sanitation members, we are

          9  opposed to that bill.

         10                 Bill Number SLR 72, calculating

         11  benefits payable to the police superior officer's

         12  variable supplement fund, we are in support of that

         13  bill.

         14                 SLR 90, we are opposed to that bill.

         15  Retirement and Social Security law, 25 years of

         16  service for senior automotive service workers. We

         17  are opposed to that bill, and the reason being,

         18  there is a provision in the Administrative Code that

         19  provides for a process whereby a union can appeal a

         20  decision on making an employee physically taxing.

         21                 Simply put, there is a physically

         22  taxing list whereby City employees can retire after

         23  20 years of service. That doesn't apply to all

         24  civilian employees, for the most part it applies to

         25  people that are covered by Section 220 of the Labor
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          2  Law.

          3                 These employees made an application

          4  to be included on that list. A decision was made by

          5  the people that were in charge of that list, that

          6  they should not be included. There is a process

          7  whereby that decision can be appealed.

          8                 The union did not complete that

          9  appeal, did not go through that appellate process.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: This process you

         11  go to State Supreme Court, or --

         12                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: No, it goes to

         13  the Board of Collective Bargaining, which is part of

         14  New York City Collective Bargaining. The Office of

         15  Collective Bargaining.

         16                 So, we are opposed to that because

         17  they did not go through the process itself, and we

         18  see it as a circumvention of the process that's

         19  pretty clearly laid out in the law.

         20                 And I guess there is one other bill,

         21  and that is a bill, PRC or SLR -- PRC SLR, Senate

         22  1595, Assembly 8480, a 25-year retirement program

         23  for Deputy Sheriffs.

         24                 We have supported improvements,

         25  enhancements of pensions and we are doing so today
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          2  in the case of superior officers variable supplement

          3  fund bill. We do that after we have had, are engaged

          4  in the process with the unions and we agree upon

          5  design and cost and things of that nature, and then

          6  we have agreed to support those bills.

          7                 There was no effort on behalf of the

          8  union to sit down and negotiate this bill. There was

          9  an initial meeting, that's true, but it never

         10  proceeded past that meeting. So, we are opposed to

         11  that bill as well.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Let me just ask,

         13  with regard to the physically taxing designation,

         14  how many titles have gone through that process and

         15  actually been approved for physical taxing status?

         16                 Like were there companion titles that

         17  were approved as part of that application?

         18                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: There really

         19  have been none for probably the last 15 to 20 years.

         20  Prior to that the process -- well, actually there

         21  has been a couple, I think. There has probably been

         22  two or three.

         23                 But prior to that, when the lists

         24  were being established and the titles were being

         25  established, it was a process that went on with some
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          2  regularity as titles were being created.

          3                 This is a title that is in the career

          4  and salary plan, which is a classification

          5  designation by DCAS, and this is the only title that

          6  I know of that has avoided the process, and tried

          7  the end run. They did it once before and the bill

          8  was vetoed by the Governor, as I recall.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Okay, thank you

         10  very much.

         11                 Do any of my colleagues have any

         12  questions?

         13                 We have been joined by Council Member

         14  John Sabini, a member of the Committee.

         15                 Are there any questions from my

         16  colleagues?

         17                 Okay, thank you very much for your

         18  testimony.

         19                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: Thank you.

         20                 So, let's start with SLR 58. Is there

         21  anyone here to testify on SLR 58?

         22                 Do you want to testify on SLR 58 and

         23  59 at the same time?

         24                 BISHOP: Okay.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Okay, that would
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          2  be great.

          3                 MR. BISHOP: Good morning.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Good morning.

          5  Please identify yourself for the record, and tell us

          6  how you feel.

          7                 MR. BISHOP: My name is Bob Bishop. I

          8  am of counsel to the Uniformed Sanitationmen's

          9  Association. To my right is Harry Nespoli, the Vice

         10  President of the Uniformed Sanitationmen's

         11  Association, and to his right is Mike Bov, who is

         12  the trustee with Uniformed Sanitationmen's

         13  Association.

         14                 We thank you for the opportunity to

         15  speak on behalf of both SLR 58 and 59. These are two

         16  very important pieces of legislation for our union,

         17  the members of our union apply to a relatively small

         18  number of people and are relatively small in cost.

         19                 SLR 58, which relates to allowing

         20  approximately 75 men who were suspended between 1990

         21  and 1993 to purchase back that time for which they

         22  were suspended as service time, they were actually

         23  laid off due to the economic conditions in the City,

         24  would call for them to pay for whatever expenses are

         25  associated with the legislation. And if you go
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          2  through the legislation, you will see that it is

          3  quite a substantial amount of money that they would

          4  be paying back, and we feel that with the nature of

          5  the work that our men do, you have only so many

          6  years in your body to do the work, and we feel that

          7  it's a fair thing to allow them to buy back this

          8  time for which they were laid off.

          9                 SLR 59 would reopen the optional

         10  retirement plan which was put into place in 1992,

         11  which was a 20-year plan. Traditionally Police,

         12  Sanitation, Correction Officers all had 20-year

         13  plans. When Tier III was instituted, Sanitation did

         14  not have a 20-year plan. We negotiated a 20-year

         15  plan with the City of New York, which is fully

         16  funded by the members of the Sanitation union.

         17                 Over the years, whereas our

         18  contribution remained constant somewhere north of

         19  five percent, the performance of the funds has done

         20  very well, and to the point where this legislation,

         21  which would grant an additional benefit beyond the

         22  reopener, which I will go into in a second, would

         23  cause -- whereas it has a cost associated with it,

         24  would not cause the City to have to put out any

         25  additional money due to the acid cushion within the
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          2  funds.

          3                 The other benefit which I talked

          4  about would be -- this is a 20-year plan, but the

          5  way it's structured, after if you stay beyond 20

          6  years, you continue to pay the 5.6 percent, and

          7  we're suggesting that once you're not taking use of

          8  that benefit, that it's time to stop paying for that

          9  benefit.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Okay.

         11                 Do any of my colleagues have any

         12  questions?

         13                 Thank you for your testimony.

         14                 MR. NESPOLI: Can I --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Yes, please.

         16                 MR. NESPOLI: Very quickly.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Sure.

         18                 MR. NESPOLI: Just for the man in the

         19  street, all right? The opportunity for that man to

         20  sign for a 20-year pension back in the early

         21  nineties, the fact was that a lot of our members

         22  come into the Department and they didn't really have

         23  the money to pay for the benefit, so they decided

         24  not to pay for it.

         25                 As time goes on, they're approaching
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          2  the 20th anniversary now, and actually over the

          3  years they put money aside for the benefit, hoping

          4  that it would open up.

          5                 In 1975, there was a layoff also in

          6  the City of New York, and I was one of those members

          7  that got laid off, and I had the opportunity and the

          8  City gave me the opportunity for a buy-back, which I

          9  was very fortunate to have.

         10                 Like my lobbyist said, there's a lot

         11  of stops within those two years that those men were

         12  laid off, and their bodies are getting a lot older.

         13  I would appreciate it, and thank you for the time

         14  here, just to voice my opinion towards it.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you. Thank

         16  you for your testimony.

         17                 Okay, SLR 72, is anyone else here to

         18  testify on SLR 72?

         19                 Come forward.

         20                 Please identify yourself for the

         21  record.

         22                 MR. MATARAZZO: Yes, Lou Matarazzo,

         23  representing the Detectives Endowment Association.

         24                 MR. TOAL: Joe Toal, representing the

         25  Sergeants Benevolent Association.
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          2                 MR. MARTIN: Good morning. Peter

          3  Martin, representing the Lieutenants Benevolent

          4  Association and the Captains' Endowment Association.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Great. Please,

          6  gentlemen.

          7                 MR. MATARAZZO: After hearing the

          8  testimony of the Commissioner, I'll keep this very

          9  brief.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Okay.

         11                 MR. MATARAZZO: The variable

         12  supplement bill was an agreement made by both the

         13  City and the Union, and all it does is equalize the

         14  benefits paid to the superior officers, the same

         15  benefits that are now enjoyed by firefighters and

         16  police officers through the City of New York.

         17                 This agreement was made and a

         18  memorandum of understanding on payment of such has

         19  been entered into, and we wish this bill to go

         20  forward.

         21                 MR. TOAL: The Sergeants Benevolent

         22  Association is also in favor of this SLR 72.

         23                 MR. MARTIN: As is the Lieutenants

         24  Benevolent Association and the Captains' Endowment.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Terrific.
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          2                 Thank you all, gentlemen.

          3                 MR. MARTIN: Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Next up is SLR

          5  90.

          6                 Gentlemen, please identify yourselves

          7  for the record, even if you're doing so again, Bob,

          8  and give us your best shot.

          9                 MR. UNGAR: Robert Ungar, Legislative

         10  Counsel to SIEU, Local 246.

         11                 MR. FRIEDMAN: Jack Friedman,

         12  president of Local 246.

         13                 MR. GRAZIANO: Tom Graziano, Business

         14  Agent, Local 246.

         15                 MR. UNGAR: Members of the Committee,

         16  it's nice to be back.

         17                 What this bill is about is correcting

         18  an inequity which has existed for a number of years.

         19  As Commissioner Hanley pointed out, it has been,

         20  there have been very, very few titles added to

         21  physically taxing in New York City for many, many

         22  years, however, many new titles have been created in

         23  city service over those years, some of those titles

         24  are extremely closely related to other titles which

         25  already have physically taxing.
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          2                 To make it easy, what this bill does

          3  is it catches up similar titles, related titles,

          4  that came after the days when large numbers of

          5  titles were being incorporated into physically

          6  taxing.

          7                 For instance, automotive service

          8  worker. There are automotive mechanic titles that

          9  already have this benefit, automotive service

         10  worker, which is a newer title, doesn't. Even though

         11  the City has automotive service workers doing a lot

         12  of the work that's done by automotive mechanics and

         13  some of the earlier titles.

         14                 So, what SEIU 246 is asking for its

         15  members here is an opportunity to go forward and

         16  have newer titles which are similar to the old

         17  titles, incorporated into the same pension.

         18                 So, you have people doing similar

         19  work with a similar benefit.

         20                 And an argument can be made that the

         21  spec for these jobs is slightly different, but the

         22  reality is what we have to deal with in real life

         23  and an auto service worker is working on vehicles,

         24  and although this is a newer title than some of the

         25  older ones, which are already included, these people
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          2  need to be picked up in that process, and that's

          3  what this bill does.

          4                 And I will now turn it over to Jack

          5  Friedman, President of the Union.

          6                 MR. FRIEDMAN: Okay, just to elaborate

          7  on what Bob said, we've tried to go through the

          8  other process with Jim Hanley and his office for I

          9  don't know how many years, we've gotten nothing but

         10  stonewalled every time we've gone there. This case

         11  has, this thing has been going on for at least 20

         12  years that I've been involved with and every time we

         13  went to them they stonewall us. I don't know how

         14  many letters that I personally wrote to Jim Hanley

         15  and the other people in OCB and everywhere else.

         16                 Jim Hanley's position on this bill

         17  was, he always said, well, I'm not going to undo, in

         18  his own words, I'm not going to undo something

         19  that's been done, that's been done over the years,

         20  I'm not changing anything, I'm just not going to

         21  make any more titles. And we feel it's grossly

         22  unfair.

         23                 I have a statement I would like to

         24  read.

         25                 Dear Council Members, I am standing
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          2  before you today as President of New York City Local

          3  246 SEIU on behalf of my members and my local

          4  employees under the titles of auto service workers,

          5  senior auto service worker, autobody worker, oil

          6  burner specialists, marine mechanics, who have been

          7  deprived for 25 years of physically taxing title.

          8  This is basically due to the fact that these titles

          9  were first introduced, the City of New York has no

         10  longer entertained making any other title physically

         11  taxing.

         12                 These members under these titles

         13  performed extremely strenuous work that is of a

         14  physically taxing nature. Just as our regular

         15  mechanics do in the same trades that come under

         16  physically taxing.

         17                 This is grossly unfair that these

         18  members are penalized due to the fact that the City

         19  has shunned their responsibility to protect their

         20  workers who perform work and are impaired by

         21  ailments associated with these types of jobs over

         22  the period of their employment.

         23                 Because the City refuses to make any

         24  more physically taxing titles, this legislation

         25  employs the same concept as legislation approved by
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          2  the Executive in 1995 which provided a 25 year/age

          3  50 retirement program for the Triborough Bridge and

          4  Tunnel employees, while the benefits provided to

          5  workers under this program   are not as generous as

          6  the Triborough Program.

          7                 The concept for employees paying for

          8  the improved program is the same. The participants

          9  will be required in this program to self-fund the

         10  cost by paying 4.83 percent for his or her

         11  compensation and also be allowed to borrow against

         12  their additional contributions, therefore, not

         13  burdening the City with any cost.  Participation in

         14  this program will be irreversible.

         15                 A new member must remain in the

         16  program for at least three years before he seeks

         17  retirement.

         18                 I'm urging the Council to unanimously

         19  pass Home Rule on this bill, in all fairness, to

         20  correct an injustice and allow equal compensation to

         21  workers performing similar work in other titles,

         22  especially in light of the fact they get less pay

         23  for their similar work.

         24                 I'm urging your support for a Home

         25  Rule on these bills because it's necessary to move
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          2  this legislation.

          3                 Thank you. Jack Friedman, President

          4  of Local 246.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you all,

          6  gentlemen, very much. We're just waiting for the

          7  clerk to come up, but in the interim we're going to

          8  call up anyone who is here for the preconsidered SLR

          9  with regard to the 25-year retirement program for

         10  Deputy Sheriffs.

         11                 Gentlemen, identify yourselves for

         12  the record and then tell us how you feel.

         13                 MR. SMYTH: My name is James Smyth, I

         14  am President of the New York City Deputy Sheriff's

         15  Association.

         16                 MR. SCHWARTZ: My name is Jonathan

         17  Schwartz, I am consultant to Mr. Smyth's group.

         18                 MR. SMYTH: Good morning, gentlemen.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Go right ahead.

         20                 MR. SCHWARTZ: I would like to thank

         21  Committee Chair, Councilman Miller and Councilman

         22  DiBrienza, especially for helping us get to this

         23  point of the Home Rule Message, and I would like to

         24  thank all the other Council Members in advance for

         25  hopefully your support.
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          2                 We're here today asking you to vote

          3  on a Home Rule Message for Assembly 8480 and Senate

          4  5095. This legislation provides for a self-funded 25

          5  year/no age retirement pension for members of the

          6  New York City Deputy Sheriff's Department.

          7                 We feel that the men and women of the

          8  New York City Sheriff's Office who are professional

          9  law enforcement group that provides a valuable

         10  service for citizens of this City, often under very

         11  stressful and very dangerous conditions are worthy

         12  and are meritorious of passage of this legislation

         13  and we hope you feel the same.

         14                 I'd just like to briefly elaborate on

         15  some of the functions and provide some stats on what

         16  we do.

         17                 In the last year, the New York City

         18  Sheriff's Office executed over 100,000 court orders

         19  more than any other Sheriff's Office in the State.

         20                 In the last year, the New York City

         21  Sheriff's Office Auto Theft Unit, a ten-person unit,

         22  investigated approximately 6,000 suspect vehicles.

         23  Three-thousand of these were determined to be

         24  stolen, and 3,000 were determined to be on the road

         25  in violation of law.
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          2                 Since 1996, this unit has

          3  investigated almost 27,000 vehicles, and identified

          4  over 20,000 stolen vehicles, and thousands of

          5  vehicles that were on the road in violation of

          6  various laws.

          7                 The New York City Sheriff's Office

          8  warrants unit made hundreds of arrests last year for

          9  non-payment of child support, maternity cases and

         10  cases of domestic violence.

         11                 The warrant unit took in over 20,000

         12  summonses. These summonses translated into hundreds

         13  of millions of dollars for the State.

         14                 The Administration for Children's

         15  Services estimates that over $400 million in child

         16  support will be collected this year. A sizable

         17  portion of that figure can be attributed to the hard

         18  work of the men and women of the New York City

         19  Sheriff's Office.

         20                 The work of this unit has

         21  significantly contributed to the reduction of the

         22  City's welfare rolls.

         23                 In the last year, the men and women

         24  of the New York City Sheriff's Office have

         25  apprehended and transported to court and/or medical
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          2  facilities hundreds of seriously ill mental patients

          3  pursuant to Kendra's Law in Section 9.43 of the

          4  State Mental Hygiene Law.

          5                 The Sheriff's Office is responsible

          6  for transporting prisoners to various courts that do

          7  not have New York City Department of Corrections

          8  holding facilities. Deputy Sheriff's also make

          9  arrests for contemptive orders of protection and

         10  enforcement of orders of quasi judicial bodies or

         11  committees with subpoena powers.

         12                 They also enforce the laws on

         13  delinquent jurors.

         14                 New York City Deputy Sheriffs are

         15  required to live in the City of New York.

         16                 It is the Association's opinion that

         17  the passage of this legislation will have a

         18  significant impact on morale at the Sheriff's

         19  Office, and it will send a clear message to this

         20  deserving group of dedicated civil servants that

         21  their hard work has not gone unnoticed or

         22  unappreciated.

         23                 The salient points we feel, and we

         24  ask that you consider in passage of this Home Rule

         25  Message, is that the Deputy Sheriffs are a deserving
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          2  group, and the bill, the fiscal part of the bill is

          3  completely paid for by member contributions.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Right.

          5                 MR. SCHWARTZ: I would like lastly to

          6  address one thing Commissioner Hanley brought up

          7  that we have sat down with them in the past, we

          8  waited and waited for their numbers, they never came

          9  back with numbers, and, so, we went ahead and put a

         10  bill in.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Yes.

         12                 And we'll just note once again that

         13  there is no cost associated with this legislation.

         14                 MR. SCHWARTZ: That's correct, sir.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: We thank you both

         16  for your testimony.

         17                 We're going to ask the clerk to call

         18  the roll, and the Chair is urging an aye vote on all

         19  matters.

         20                 MR. SCHWARTZ: Thank you very much.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Miller.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Aye.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: DiBrienza.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Aye on all,

         25  as we stand up again, as always, for the working men
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          2  and women of this City.

          3                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Espada.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ESPADA: Mr. Chair, if

          6  I can be excused for a moment?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Certainly.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ESPADA: I just wanted

          9  to firsthand apologize to the Committee. There was

         10  some confusion and I wasn't sure that I was on the

         11  Committee. I will be from now on making sure that I

         12  attend all of the meetings of this Committee.

         13                 I unfortunately have not heard most

         14  of the testimony on some of the things we've heard,

         15  but in the interest of allowing my colleagues the

         16  opportunity to vote it on the floor, I will vote aye

         17  on all items today.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Sabini.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Aye.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Oddo.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Aye.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Please leave the

         24  -- we're going to leave the roll open for Council

         25  Member Fisher, who I know is just outside the room
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          2  and will be returning shortly, he is just in another

          3  committee meeting, but why don't you call the result

          4  at the moment.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: The vote stands

          6  at six in the affirmative, none in the negative, no

          7  abstentions.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you very

          9  much.

         10                 So, we're in recess I guess. The roll

         11  is open but this Committee meeting is adjourned for

         12  the moment.

         13                 (Hearing recessed at 11:10 a.m.)

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

         25
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          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 11th day of May 2001.

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

                                   ---------------------

         25                          CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.
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          3

          4

          5

          6

          7

          8

          9            I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified Shorthand

         10  Reporter and a Notary Public in and for the State of

         11  New York, do hereby certify the aforesaid to be a

         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24                 -----------------------

                              CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.
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